TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE
Zoning Board of Adjustment

9 South Main Street
Progress with Vision Waynesville, NC 28786

onparyd Jie Phone (828) 456-8647 © Fax (828) 452-1492
' www.wavnesvillenc.gov

Development Services

Henry Kidder, Chair b
David Felmet, Vice-Chair WELKr

Stephanie Strickland Elizabeth Teague

Joshua Morgan
George Escaravage
Edward Moore

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
REGULAR MEETING
Town Hall — 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC 28786
Tuesday, April 2, 2019, 5:30 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER:
1. Welcome/Announcements

2. Adoption of Minutes from the December 4, 2018 Meeting.

B. BUSINESS ITEMS:

1. Board Discussion on the Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update.

C. ADJOURN



Page 1 of 15

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Zoning Board of Adjustment
9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 » Fax (828) 452-1492
www.wavnesvillenc.gov

WAYNESVILLE

Progress with Vision

Stephanie Strickland Development Services
Henry Kidder(Chairman) Director
Joshua Morgan Elizabeth Teague

George Escaravage
David Felmet (Vice Chairman)
Edward Moore

Regular Meeting
Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC 28786
Tuesday, December 4th, 2018 at 5:30 pm

THE WAYNESVILLE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT held its regular meeting on December 4t 2018 at
5:30 p.m. in the board room of the Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC.

A. CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Henry Kidder called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

The following members were present:
Henry Kidder, Chairman
David Felmet, Vice Chairman
Joshua Morgan
George Escaravage
Edward Moore

The following members were absent:
Stephanie Strickland

The following staff members were present:
Elizabeth Teague, Development Services Director
Byron Hickox, Land Use Administrator
Jesse Fowler, Planner
Chelle Baker, Administrative Assistant
Ron Sneed, Attorney to the Board

1. Welcome/Calendar/Announcements

Chairman Henry Kidder welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

2. Adoption of Minutes

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 2 of 15

A motion was made by Board Member David Felmet, seconded by Board Member George
Escaravage, to approve the minutes of the September 4", 2018 board meeting as
presented. The motion passed unanimously.

B. BUSINESS

Chairman Kidder explained to the applicants that since there were four Board Members present, in order
to approve the requested variances, all four members would have to vote for unanimous approval. The
applicants were given the option of canceling the meeting and rescheduling at a later date when another
Board member would be in attendance, making the totality of Board members present five, or
continuing with the meeting as scheduled with four Board Members. Each applicant was asked
individually.

Mr. Steven McClure, the applicant on behalf of the variance request at 519 N Main Street, chose to
continue with the meeting as scheduled.

Mr. Chuck Reece, the applicant on behalf of the variance request for 1700 Russ Avenue, chose to
continue with the meeting as scheduled.

Ms. Jackie Rich, the applicant on behalf of the variance request for 62 Overbrook Drive, chose to
continue with the meeting as scheduled.

Chairman Kidder approved the affirmations to proceed from each of the applicants. He then reviewed
the Protocols for a Quasi-judicial hearing, including the rules of conduct and the variance hardship
ordinance rules and asked if everyone understood the procedures that would be followed. There were
no questions or comments.

Chairman Kidder asked any witnesses who wished to speak to come forward and be sworn in at 5:38
p.m. After the swearing in, Chairman Kidder reviewed the rules of Standing, advised that the Town and
the Applicant are determined to be parties of Standing in these matters and asked if anyone else had a
Standing request. There were none.

Chairman Kidder polled members of the Board to see if there were any procedural matters, ethical
considerations or conflicts of interest that should be disclosed prior to beginning the first hearing.
» Have any Members of this Board had any conversations concerning this case other than the
agenda packet distributed to the Board in anticipation to this meeting?
All Board Members answered No, except Chairman Kidder whom answered yes and explained
he spoke to Director Elizabeth Teague concerning procedural matters.
» Any Board Member subject to an impermissible conflict of interest which would make a Member
unable to be an impartial decision maker in the matter under consideration?
All Board Members answered no.
» Does any party have an objection concerning the impartiality of this panel?
There were no objections.

Board Member Edward Moore arrived at the meeting at 5:43 p.m.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



1

Page 3 of 15

Chairman Kidder asked Mr. Moore the same poll questions and Mr. Moore responded “No” to each.
Chairman Kidder then asked if there were any objections concerning Mr. Moore’s impartiality and there
were no objections.

Chairman Kidder opened the public hearing at 5:43 p.m. and called on Ms. Elizabeth Teague to present
the Staff Report.

1. Requested variance of setback standards, Land Development Standards Section 2.4.1, at 519
North Main Street, Tax Parcel Identification Number 8615-58-0518.

Ms. Teague welcomed everyone and thanked everyone for coming. She began by entering into evidence
the following documents:
I.  Staff Report
[I.  All Maps that are part of the Agenda packet
lll.  Town’s LDS-Current edition as of today’s date
IV.  Application- in Agenda packet/ Steve McClure & Bobby Joe McClure
V.  Attached Photographs and proposed surveys

VI.  Copy of mailed notice and Mailing lists of adjacent properties
VIl.  Copy of Notice to Mountaineer Newspaper(affidavit should be forthwith and will be
added to the Evidence also)
VIIl.  Letter of Authorization to appear form- Steven McClure on behalf of Bobby Joe McClure

(did not have at the time the Agenda packet went out). Noted that Steven McClure is
the son of Bobby Joe McClure.

Background: Ms. Teague explained that this was a Variance Request at PIN 8615-58-0518 for a
reduction in side yard setback between units 519 and 525 North Main. She advised the Town
ordinance section in question is the Dimensional Standards by District, Chapter 2, Section 2.4 of the
Land Development Standards. This is a single lot of multiple units at North Main Street numbers
519, 525, 545 and 555. The zoning district is the Walnut Street Residential Neighborhood District
and is part of the “mixed-use” area which allows certain commercial uses. It has a minimum side
yard setback of ten feet and a minimum lot size of 1/6 acre or 7,260 sf. The existing development
is as professional offices and the nature of the variance is to allow 3.01 feet encroachment of
existing structures within side yard setbacks in order to accommodate the drawing of a subdivision
of land between existing buildings. Ms. Teague advised the property is a conforming lot with one
residential structure and one multi-unit commercial structure that are currently used for offices.
She stated the owner is Bobby Joe McClure and he would like to subdivide the lot in order to convey
a newly created lot holding the residential structure to his son Steven McClure. The two structures
currently exist in the same lot and are just under 14 feet apart at their closest points. When two
buildings are on the same lot, the setback requirements is six feet between buildings. When two
buildings are on separate, abutting lots, the side yard setback (building to boundary line) is ten feet.
The applicant has submitted a draft survey showing that each building would be 6.99 feet from the
boundary line at its closest point. Therefore, a maximum side yard setback variance of about 3.01
feet on each side of the newly drawn subdivision boundary would be required where the buildings
would encroach upon the side yard setback of the new lots.

From a building code standpoint, each building is considered a “Group B” type of building with an
assumed Type IV Construction. Therefore, wherever the buildings encroach within ten feet of the

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



S

Page 4 of 15

side yard setback, the building walls must be rated to a one hour fire wall. Ms. Teague also advised
that outside of this hearing staff would be looking at Land Use regulations and building code issues
because building separation distances are different when buildings are on the same lots versus
adjacent lots.

Surrounding Land Use/Zoning Patterns: This property is located along North Main Street within the
Walnut Street Neighborhood Residential District as part of the “Mixed use” area which allows
professional offices. It is bordered to the north and south by commercial property and to the east
by a single family home.

Ms. Teague quoted from the Town of Waynesville’s Land Development Standards 2.3.3
Neighborhood Residential Districts Purpose and Intent concerning the Walnut Street Neighborhood
District (WS-NR) and 2.6.2 Mixed-Use Overlay District (MX-O) A. Purpose and B. Applicability. Ms.
Teague read the Purpose and Applicability statements that describe the goals of zoning.

Variance requirements and Staff Recommended Findings:

Ms. Teague reminded that the Board of Adjustment shall not grant a variance unless and until it
makes all of the following findings and that Town staff has provided possible findings for each
criteria for Board Members’ considerations:

l. Un-necessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall
not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use
can be made of the property. Staff submits:

e An un-necessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance
in the case of the side yard setbacks because, the two structures are already in
existence, with tax records listing construction as 1925.

e The variance requested is the minimum necessary and would not change the nature
of what is already there or create new construction or impact.

e Without the variance, the property cannot be conveyed to a direct descendent
through the “family subdivision” statutory exemption as provided in Section 6.2.1
of the Land Development Standards.

Il.  The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size
or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships
resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may
not be the basis for granting a variance.

e Staff believes that the hardship presented is peculiar to the property in that it is an
existing lot with two individual structures within it. The only way to subdivide the
property is to draw the boundary line between the two buildings as depicted on the
survey

e The property houses professional offices as allowed by zoning with a shared parking
lot, driveway access and dumpster. In order for the lot to be subdivided without the

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 5 of 15

variance, one of the buildings would have to be moved over in order to create the
prescribed side yard setback.

. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The
act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the
granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.

e Staff states that the property was purchased by current owners in 1978 and there is
no other practical way to subdivide the lot without creating a side yard setback
encroachment

IV.  The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance,
such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

o Staff believes that the requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and
intent of the ordinance because granting of this variance would not create an impact
to the District and would not change the physical reality of the existing lot and the
structures as they are now.

e Granting of the variance would be for the minimum encroachment needed and
would not allow future expansion or encroachment along the new property line.
This would create a nonconformity that would convey to the property. The
buildings are there in existence and staff does not see it as impacting the existing
conditions as we know them.

Chairman Kidder asked for clarification on the staff report regarding the house number: 515 N Main
Street. Ms. Teague advised that it was a typo and the correct address was 519 N Main Street.
Board Member Felmet asked about the zoning in place during the time the office was built on the
property. Ms. Teague advised it was in place in 2002 and updated in 2011. Board Member
Escaravage asked if the variance was approved and the one hour fire rating is not there would they
be required to bring the building up to code. Ms. Teague advised yes, at least the portion that is
less than ten feet from the property line. The Board had questions for Ms. Teague concerning the
mixed-use overlay and the subdivision of the lot. Ms. Teague advised that it could be used for
residential also. She also reviewed the square footage from the survey provided and advised that
both proposed lots being created were compliant with the minimum standards of the District in
terms of minimum lot size.

Chairman Kidder asked the applicant to speak.

Steven McClure
187 Worsham Dr
Waynesville, NC 28786

Mr. McClure said that the property at 519 N Main Street was deeded to him by his parents and
they did not realize it was not divided. He told the Board it was his wish to have it divided. Mr.
McClure stated he currently owns 563 North Main Street and with this property he will own the

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 6 of 15

corner. He re-iterated that it was the wish to have this property deeded to him from his parents
and asked if the Board had any questions for him.

Board Members asked him questions about the houses and buildings on the property and Mr.
McClure advised that the commercial building was built in 1986 by his father.

There being no further questions of the applicant, the public hearing was closed at 6:06 p.m. so
that the Board could begin deliberations on the evidence they had heard. Attorney Ron Sneed

passed out a Variance Findings checklist to the Board to assist in their deliberations.

1. Will unnecessary hardship result from the strict application of the Ordinance?

The discussion of the Board is that the applicant does not plan to do anything other than have
the house and this essentially leaves him with “bookends” with a commercial office building.
The consensus of the Board is that with the proximity of the buildings he cannot divide his
buildings like anybody else in the neighborhood and this is an unnecessary hardship.

2. Does the hardship result from conditions that peculiar to the property, such as location, size,

or topography?

The discussion of the Board is that conditions are peculiar to the property. Board Member
Morgan described how the building codes as a single lot at this property do not mesh with the
code for two separate properties. The Board discussed that if the building codes had been
aligned they would have moved the building when they built it. Therefore, the consensus of
the Board is that the hardship is the buildings are too close together without a subdivision.

3. Is the hardship the result of actions taken by the applicant or the property owner?

The discussion of the Board is that the building codes don’t align with the ultimate division of
this lot, if they did then they wouldn’t have built it fifteen feet apart, they would have built it
twenty feet apart. Board Members Felmet and Morgan discussed the building codes going
into effect in 2002 and being updated in 2011. Therefore, the consensus of the Board is that
the hardship is not the result of actions taken by the applicant or property owner as the
buildings were built at their present location on the property before the building code went
into effect.

4. Is the requested variance consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance,
such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved?

The consensus of the Board was that the requested variance is consistent with spirit, purpose,
and intent of the ordinance. The discussion of the Board is that substantial justice is achieved
because by granting the variance this allows the applicant to do with their property divided
like everyone else in the neighborhood can do. The Board also stated that public safety was
secured. They addressed the comment from Ms. Teague that the buildings are there in
existence and there would be no impacting of the existing conditions as know them.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018

t



Page 7 of 15

A motion was made by Board Member David Felmet, seconded by Board Member Joshua
Morgan, to grant a variance request for a side setback variance for Property at 519, 525, 545
& 555 North Main Street. The motion passed unanimously.

Chairman Kidder called on Mr. Byron Hickox, Land use Administrator, to present the staff
report, reminded everyone that they were still sworn in and opened the second public hearing
at 6:10 p.m.

2. Requested variance of commercial building design guidelines, Land Development Standards Section
5.10, at 1700 Russ Avenue, Tax Parcel Identification Number 8616-36-7164.

Mr. Hickox began by entering the following into evidence items in Agenda Packet including:

I.  All maps in the Agenda Packet
II.  Land Development Standards with design guidelines in Agenda Packet
Ill.  Application in Agenda Packet
IV.  Authorization to present at this hearing and all future hearings on behalf of MCU
V.  Proposed Site plan
VI.  Two building design sheets included in the Agenda packet
VII. Public notice letter and mailing labels

Mr. Hickox stated that the property was 6.23 acres and the address is 1700 Russ Avenue. He advised
it is in the Dellwood Medium Density District and within the mixed-use overlay of that district. He also
said the lot has been graded and some site and foundation work has been done, but it is otherwise
undeveloped. He stated that the proposed development is the construction of a new 2-story building
with a footprint of 2,700 square feet and a covered drive through area. He noted that the Mountain
Credit Union will be a financial institution.

Mr. Hickox advised that Section 5.10.3 (C)2 of the Land Development Standards states that “at least fifty
percent of the length of building along the side street building facade” must be comprised of transparent
glazing. He stated that the proposed building has a front fagade that is 111 feet in length. Therefore,
55.5 feet of transparent glazing would be required on this facade. The original building drawings
indicated 33 feet of windows and doors along the Russ Avenue facade, only 29.7 percent of the total
length of the fagade. He said that a second building design was submitted with several windows added,
but this design only brought the total percentage of glazing to 40.5 percent, still 9.5 percent short of the
LDS requirement.

Mr. Hickox advised that the current zoning is the Dellwood Medium Density Mixed-Use Overlay. He
reviewed the Purpose and Intent of this district as established by the Land Development Standards,
Section 2.3.2 (B) Stating:

The Dellwood Residential-Medium Density District (D-RM) shall develop predominately as a low
to medium density residential district separating the Russ Avenue and Dellwood/Junaluska
Town Centers. Promoting a mixture of residential densities, this district shall be developed with
such enhancements to residential living as pedestrian access and the provision of open space.
Higher density development and limited business and professional services shall be promoted
along Russ Avenue with larger lots and cluster development promoted throughout the district.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 8 of 15

Nonresidential uses typically found in residential areas are permitted, however, development in
this district shall be designed to clearly define the residential appearance and scale of the area
and to define the differences between this area and the Russ Avenue Town Center and
Dellwood/Junaluska Area Center.

Mr. Hickox advised the Board that the requested variance would permit Mountain Credit Union to
construct a new building with a design that incorporates glazing (windows and doors) as 40 percent of
the front facade ground floor. He stated that the building will otherwise comply with the Town of
Waynesville’s commercial building design standards.

He stated that town staff has encountered previous proposed developments for which the glazing
requirement were extremely difficult to meet. The fifty percent requirement for transparent glazing
along a front fagcade seems to have been conceived with a downtown style building in mind, and would
make sense in such a setting. He explained to the Board that in mixed-use areas, this amount of glazing
seems excessive. Mr. Hickox added that the Land Development Standards’ purpose and intent for this
district calls for development to define the “residential appearance” of the area. Facades with fifty
percent of their length composed of glazing would not have a particularly residential appearance.

Mr. Hickox offers the following findings for the Boards consideration:

l. Unnecessary hardship would result from strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made
of the property.

* The requirement of fifty percent of glazing along the front fagade of the proposed
building would greatly impact the overall function of the building. As a financial
institution, there are specific uses of the interior space that require enhanced privacy
and security. Windows simply would not permit this.

Il.  The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size or
topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting
from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or to the general public, may not be the
basis for granting a variance.

e Given the building’s location along Russ Avenue, a 5-lane state highway, and its
proposed placement 95 to 105 feet from the edge of the roadway, the requirement of
a large amount of glazing does not correspond to the Land Development Standards’
emphasis on designing buildings with a residential appearance.

. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act
of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of
a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.
e The hardship is not the result of actions taken by the property owner. In fact, Mountain
Credit Union and its design professionals have made a significant good faith effort to
redesign the proposed building to incorporate as much glazing as is feasible considering
the overall function of the building.

IV.  The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such
that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



10

Page 9 of 15

e Staff consensus is that the building’s design meets these standards. Forty percent
glazing is a significant amount of windows and doors on the front fagade of the proposed
building. Staff consensus is that the addition of more windows or doors would actually
detract from the building’s overall appearance.

Mr. Hickox asked the Board if they had any questions. Chairman Kidder asked in regards to the distance
from the road, about the rules on commercial buildings being blockable in certain districts. Mr. Hickox
advised that was not a standard in this district.

Mr. Hickox introduced Mr. Odell Thompson, Architect to speak on behalf of the developer.

Odell Thompson
Sylva, NC
MOT Architect

Mr. Odell Thompson introduced himself and submitted a diagram into evidence. He explained that
this diagram was a drawing he did based off the design guidelines ordinance to help with the
transparency standards and was labeled with possible transparency options one, two and three and
the bottom diagram is what was on the original design. Mr. Thompson stated that he felt these three
versions embody the spirit of the design guidelines and how the guidelines are meant to make it look
like a beautiful building. He also submitted that the original design does not look as good as option
number one on the diagram and that he felt the closer it gets to achieving the fifty percent
transparency ordinance the worse the building looks. Mr. Thompson described to the Board that the
base of the building was stone, this gave a strong appearance of a financial institution that was
protecting money; therefore, the more glass that was put in the less stone there was, thus creating
psychologically the feeling of it being less secure. He further stated that from a graphic standpoint the
less stone that was used, the less sturdy the building felt. Mr. Thompson requested the Board to take
this into consideration.

Board Member Felmet asked about the different options on the diagram. Mr. Thompson explained
the different options and stated that they are happy to follow the rules, but also want to honor the
client and neighborhood. He pointed out to the Board that the building is 100 feet off the road and
the Town'’s landscape ordinance requires trees and shrubs; therefore, from the roadway, the visibility
of the bottom of the building would be unlikely.

Board Member Morgan asked if the variance request Mr. Thompson was proposing for approval was
for option #2 on the diagram he submitted of 40% glazing. Mr. Thompson acknowledged yes, but
asked if it was a possibility for option #1 of 35%, because this was the preference as a design
professional in the spirit of design guidelines. Board Member Morgan asked if they were subject to
hold option #2 or if they could switch to option #1. Mr. Hickox advised that the Board was able to
approve the variance to whatever degree they chose. Board Member Morgan advised that he agreed
the original design does not meet the spirit of what this is intended to do and that option #1 on the
submitted diagram would be the best while still recognizing the variance in a mixed use overlay in a
residentially zoned district.

Discussion took place along with reviews of the drawings of the sixteen foot portico that sticks out and
has its own facade. Chairman Kidder asked Mr. Thompson, when he stated the proposal would
greatly impact the overall function of the building, which specific uses of the interior would he not use

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 10 of 15

by putting more glazing in. Mr. Thompson advised the mechanical rooms and stairwell. Mr. Kidder
asked if there were any concerns for the second floor and Mr. Thompson advised no, only the glazing
on the main level.

Chairman Kidder asked the public for questions and comments. There were none.

Elizabeth Teague, Director of Development Services, asked to cross examine Mr. Odell Thompson.
Chairman Kidder granted.

Ms. Teague asked Mr. Thompson from an architectural standpoint the difference between glazing on a
suburban design versus a downtown building. Mr. Thompson advised that this financial building is an
isolated building, also described as a monument building. These types of buildings are seen as
pharmacies, financial institutions, museums and are not designed for the window shopping
experience. He explained that the window glazing ordinance is made for a type of experience on Main
Street that is window shopping. He further stated this was the difference between urban
transparency versus suburban transparency. Discussion between the Board, staff, and Attorney Ron
Sneed took place regarding the transparency ordinance becoming more difficult to meet fifty percent
as more development grows outside the central business and commercial districts in new areas.

Board Member Felmet advised staff to pass along glazing ordinance concerns information to the
Planning Board.

Chairman Kidder invited and swore in for public comment:

Dr. Kristen Hammett
164 Augustus Circle
Waynesville, NC

Dr. Hammett introduced herself and advised that she was an adjacent property owner of 1606 Russ
Avenue. She stated that the 35% option (1) looked significantly more balanced and the best of the
options on the diagram. She also stated that in the neighborhood was the Maple Tree Veterinary
building, also a monument building, with less than 35 percent glazing. She advised it was a nice
looking building and felt this building would look great with it. She thanked the Board.

There being no further questions of the public or applicants, the public hearing was closed at 6:45 p.m.
so that the Board could begin deliberations on the evidence they heard.

1. Will unnecessary hardship result from the strict application of the Ordinance?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that the interior of the building would have to be
redesigned to find a more secure and pleasant view for people who are looking into the windows.

2. Does the hardship result from conditions that peculiar to the property, such as location, size,
or topography?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that with this property and the distance from the
road with the required Land Development Standards are excessive in their application.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 11 of 15

3. Is the hardship the result of actions taken by the applicant or the property owner?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that there is no indication the hardship is
something that the owner did. The Board determined that the use the applicant is proposing
of the property is an allowed use as a bank and for that reason it is not their actions and the
glazing is creating the hardship that the applicant did not bring on themselves.

4. s the requested variance consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance,
such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that the requested variance is consistent with the
spirit, purpose and intent of the ordinance as it conforms to the area it is in and this being a
residential area it is consistent with that look. The Board agreed that there are no safety concerns
and there are no problems with its location on Russ Avenue.

A motion was made by Board Member George Escaravage, seconded by Board Member
Joshua Morgan, to grant a variance request on a commercial building design for 35 percent
transparency glazing along the front facade ground floor of the Mountain Credit Union at 1700
Russ Avenue, Tax Parcel Identification Number 8616-36-7164. The motion passed
unanimously.

3. Regquested variance of commercial building design puidelines, Land Development Standards
Section 5.10, at 62 Overbrook Drive, Tax Parcel Identification Number 8615-79-2340.

Mr. Hickox began by entering the following attachments into evidence:

I.  Staff report

Il Maps
1. Land Development Standards
IV.  Application with Attachments

V. Site Plan
VI, Building Drawings- Transparency and Glazing
VII.  Mailing and Notices/ Mailing Labels

Mr. Hickox presented background information to the Board stating that the property was .81 acres at
the corner of Overbrook Drive and Broadview Road. He stated that the lot has been graded, some site
work has been done, and the building is approximately 35% built. He also advised the Board that the
proposed development is the construction of a new one story building with a footprint of 6,960 square
feet divided into three separate tenant spaces.

He read Section 5.10.3(C)2 of the Land Development Standards that “At least fifty (50) percent of the
length of building along the side street building fagade” must be comprised of transparent glazing. The

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018

12



%

proposed building has a fagade along Broadview Road that is 120 feet in length. Therefore, sixty feet of
transparent glazing would be required on this facade. The applicant has proposed a building with twenty
seven feet of transparent windows and doors. This amount of glazing would only constitute 22.5 percent
of the building’s fagade, 27.5 percent short of the design guideline requirement.

Page 12 of 15

Mr. Hickox stated that the building’s relation to Broadview Road is somewhat different than a typical
new commercial development. The property sits south of an existing commercial development which
front along North Main Street. He informed the Board that the developer chose to also orient the new
development towards North Main Street, which is a thoroughly commercial developed street. He
advised the Board that because of the building’s design and placement on the lot, the Broadview Road
facade is actually a rear fagade. Due to this being the true rear of the building, this is the location of
storage areas, mechanical rooms, and a proposed kitchen. He stated that these interior uses are not
well suited to an overabundance of windows due to privacy and security concerns.

Mr. Hickox informed the Board that while the developer is seeking relief from the glazing requirements
along the Broadview Road facade, the front (north) fagade of the building exceeds the minimum glazing
requirement, with 55 percent of its facade comprised of transparent windows and doors.

He advised that the current zoning is North Main Neighborhood Center. The purpose and intent of this
district as established by the Land Development Standards, Section 2.3.5 (A) states:

The North Main Street Neighborhood Center District (NM-NC) is a mixed use district that forms the
gateway into town from the northeast. The setting of this district is important as it frames Eagles
Nest Mountain at the apex of the hill on North Main and forms a forced perspective to the “center”
of the district- the intersection of Walnut and Main Streets. As a result, maintaining inviting vistas
down Main Street and creating an attractive public realm are the objective of many of the standards
set forth for this district. ~Street walls, boulevard trees and sign control will all be important in
meeting these objectives as the street is redesigned. Working to keep traffic congestion to a
minimum in this area will require the use of rear access drives, side street entrances

e The building’s location is within the NM-NC district, and it fronts North Main Street with
the Broadview road facade serving as the rear of the building. The properties across
Broadview Road, and far to the south, are residential. The requirement of a large
amount of glazing along this facade would seem to be out of character with this
neighborhood.

Chairman Kidder stated that it seemed as if this ordinance were made for downtown and the chances
of new buildings being developed in downtown were minimal.

Board Member Joshua Morgan advised that if the applicant’s building was flipped 180 degrees then it
would fit the ordinance. Mr. Hickox agreed and pointed out that the building faces the commercial
district that it is a part of, and is not facing the residential district. Board Member Morgan also stated
that from a functional standpoint if it were flipped the parking would then have to be in the back of the
building. The Board and staff discussed the difficulty in trying to put this ordinance over some of the
new growth and development in the mixed use zones.

Chairman Kidder opened the public hearing at 6:59 p.m. and welcomed the first applicant to speak.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 13 of 15

Jackie Rich
3 Bradford Circle
Waynesville, NC 28786

Ms. Jackie Rich introduced herself and stated that she was the owner of All About You Salon, 379
Walnut Street and Overbrook Village, 62 Overbrook Drive.

Tim Bowers
3 Bradford Circle
Waynesville, NC 28786

Mr. Tim Bowers introduced himself and stated that he was the co-owner and developer. Mr. Bowers
and Ms. Rich presented a power point for the Board and stated that it was in reference to ordinance
requirements 5.10 for transparency. Mr. Bowers advised the Board that he tried to angle the building
due to traffic flow. He described the orientation of the building on the lot in relation to the established
commercial entrance and the shared easement in keeping traffic exiting out of that commercial
entrance. Mr. Bowers further explained to the Board that the building is 120 feet long and the
ordinance would require sixty feet of glass. He spoke about the building occupying commercial
tenants and this creating apprehension of the glass requirements due to it being a security risk on
what they see as the backside (Broadview) of the building. He stated that they had 3 glass doors and
some windows for a totality of 27 feet, thus they were requesting the variance of 22.5% of glazing on
the back (Broadview) side. He advised the Board that on the front of the building the glazing
exceeded 55%. Mr. Bowers described that the rooms located in the back of the building in each of the
tenant spaces were back work rooms and why they did not need windows in these rooms such as the
salons pedicure/manicure vent room. He invited the owner of one of the tenants, Los Amigos
Restaurant, to speak on their own behalf.

Hilda Rios
366 Russ Avenue
Waynesville, NC

Ms. Hilda Rios introduced herself and stated that she was the owner of the Los Amigos Restaurant and
would not be able to add windows in her back workspace. She advised that she had a sink along the
back wall and next to that would be a dishwasher where the window would need to be added.

Mr. Bowers returned to the Power Point presentation and stated that there were more reasons along
the Broadview, backside, interior walls unabling them to incorporate more windows. He described
the support cables for structural integrity that expanded cross-wise along the wall disallowing a
window. He showed the proposed pedicure room and walk-in cooler area. He talked about looking
into the option of fake windows and glazing but that he felt it did not have a good design look. Mr.
Bowers requested relief from the Board to reduce the glazing requirement along Broadview from 50%
to 22.5% and asked if they had any questions for him.

Questions and discussion took place between the Board and the applicants regarding if there were any
noticeable condenser noise and the applicants answered no. The Board asked if there would be
fencing around the patio areas and Ms. Rios advised if fencing was a requirement of the ABC permit

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



Page 14 of 15

then she would comply. Measurements of the sidewalks and porch areas were discussed along with
the landscaping.

There being no further questions of the public or applicants, the public hearing was closed at 6:45 p.m.
so that the Board could begin deliberations on the evidence they heard.

1. Will unnecessary hardship result from the strict application of the Ordinance?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that this particular part of the ordinance does not fit
with regards to the windows exposing a lot of the unaesthetically pleasing parts of the building.
The Board also added how following the ordinance with this building creates a situation where the
side itself lends to the building having its back on the street side and the ordinance thus creates a
hardship.

2. Does the hardship result from conditions that peculiar to the property, such as location, size,
or topography?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that to make this ordinance work a commercial
building facing a residential neighborhood goes against the spirit of the ordinance creating a
hardship based on location.

3. Is the hardship the result of actions taken by the applicant or the property owner?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that the property owner has tried to address the
ordinance on the part of the building that’s facing the commercial part of town. The Board
discussed that following the ordinance as written would create hardships in line with the first two
variance findings in terms of character of the site.

4. Is the requested variance consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance,
such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved?

The discussion and consensus of the Board is that with the spirit of the ordinance the building fits
in within the surroundings and with the other buildings. Chairman Kidder stated that there are
visible windows and even though not at fifty percent, they still soften the wall and are sufficient
for the building. Board Member Morgan stated that following the ordinance would create a
structural nuisance.

Ms. Teague submitted into record a handout provided to the Board by the Applicants.

A motion was made by Board Member Joshua Morgan, seconded by Board Member David Felmet,
to grant a variance request of the commercial building design guidelines for a proposed commercial
building located at 62 Overbrook Drive, Land Development Standards Chapter 5.1, applicant is Jackie
Rich, the request is for less than 50% transparent glazing. The motion passed unanimously.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



|"

Page 15 of 15

C. PUBLIC COMMENT /CALL ON THE AUDIENCE

No one spoke

D. ADJOURN

With no further business, a motion was made by Board Member Dave Felmet, seconded by Board Member
Joshua Morgan, to adjourn the meeting at 7:26 p.m. The motion passed unanimously.

Henry Kidder, Chairman Chelle Baker, Administrative Assistant

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 4, 2018



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BEFORE THE WAYNESVILLE
COUNTY OF HAYWOOD ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

In the Matter of the Application of
Bobby Joe McClure for a Variance for
Property at 519, 525, 545 & 555

North Main Street ORDER GRANTING VARIANCE

S S St S S’

THIS CAUSE, coming on before the Zoning Board of Adjustment for the Town of
Waynesville on December 4, 2018, upon the application of Steven T. McClure on behalf of
Bobby Joe McClure for a variance to allow a reduction of side setback requirements between a
commercial building having the addresses 525, 545 and 555 North Main Street, Waynesville,
NC, and a residential structure having the address of 519 North Main Street, Waynesville, NC .

The Applicant, Steven T. McClure, as agent for the property owner, Bobby Joe McClure,
appeared pro se.

The members of the Zoning Board of Adjustment sitting for the hearing were the
chairperson, Henry Kidder and board members David Felmet, Joshua Morgan, George
Escaravage and Edward Moore. Ronald E. Sneed attended as counsel for the Board.

Elizabeth Teague, Development Services Director, appeared for the Town staff,

The Zoning Board of Adjustment, having heard and considered the testimony of town
staff, all witnesses for the Applicant and from citizens who chose to speak, and having
considered all the evidence presented by the town staff and the Applicant, and the statements and
arguments of the Applicant, makes the following:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Zoning Board of Adjustment has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Section
14.4.1and Section 15.13 of the Land Development Standards.

2. Proper notice of this meeting and hearing of the Zoning Board of Adjustment was
provided as required by the Town ordinances and the state law.

3. Bobby Joe McClure owns land lying on North Main Street currently having the current
PIN number on the Haywood Tax Map of 8615-58-0518.

4. There are two buildings on the described property which are just under 14 feet apart at
their closest point. On of the buildings is a commercial structure housing three business spaces
and one is a residential structure.

g



5. The Applicant proposes to subdivide the property to create two lots, with the
residential structure on one lot and the commercial structure on the other lot.

6. The property is located in the Walnut Street Neighborhood Residential District.

7. The side setback in the Walnut Street Neighborhood Residential District is ten (10)
feet from the lot line.

8. The two buildings on the property were lawfully constructed and located when they
were built.

9. The creation of two lots, with the residential building on one lot and the commercial
structure on the other lot will make sense due to the nature of the use of the property and the
improved marketability of either lot in the future.

10. If the ordinance establishing the side setbacks is enforced as written, it will be
impossible to create two lots and separate the residential lot from the commercial lot.

11. The inability to create two separate lots creates an unnecessary hardship for the
Applicant.

13. If the property is divided as proposed, the resulting new lots will comply with all
requirements of the zoning district except the side setback requirement.

14. No matter what the configuration of the new lots might be, the distance between the
two buildings on the same property, while legal as they are, are too close to each other to allow
the required setback to be met.

15. The building setback must be varied by 3.01 feet to allow the division of the property
into two lots as proposed.

16. The shape of the lot and the location of the buildings which were legal when
constructed are not the result of actions of the Applicant.

17. This hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property which is the
close proximity of the two buildings.

18. Allowing the side setback variance will make no changes from what is seen on the
property, as the two buildings are already in place and familiar to neighbors and those who travel
through the neighborhood.

19. The property can be subdivided in a way that will allow two lots equal to or
exceeding the minimum lot size requirements of the zoning district.



BASED UPON THE FOREGOING FINDINGS OF FACT, THIS BOARD by a vote of 5
to 0 concludes that:

1. Unnecessary hardship will result from the strict application of the ordinance as such
strict application will prevent the separation of a residential property from a commercial

property.

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, which condition
is the close proximity of two building which were legally constructed at their present locations.

3. The hardship is not the result of actions taken by the Applicant or the property owner
as the buildings were legally constructed at their present location on the property.

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the
ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved, as the structures
are already in place and the variance allows no physical changes which change the current look
and character of pre-existing structures.

IT IS NOW, THEREFORE, ORDERED, that the Applicant’s request for a side setback
variance of 3.01 feet for the resulting lots after the division of the real property of Bobby Joe
McClure at 519, 525, 545 & 555 North Main Street is granted.

This the day of ,2018.

HENRY KIDDER, Chairperson

If you are dissatisfied with the decision of this Board, an appeal may be taken to the
Superior Court of Haywood County within 30 days after the date this order is served on
you. See Section 15.13.4 of the Land Development Standards.



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BEFORE THE WAYNESVILLE
COUNTY OF HAYWOOD ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

In the Matter of the Application of
Mountain Credit Union for a Variance for
Property at 1700 Russ Avenue

ORDER GRANTING VARIANCE

THIS CAUSE, coming on before the Zoning Board of Adjustment for the Town of
Waynesville on December 4, 2018, upon the application of Mountain Credit Union for a variance
to allow a reduction of the required transparent glazing for the ground floor of a proposed new
structure.

Odell Thompson, as agent for the property owner, Mountain Credit Union, appeared pro
se.

The members of the Zoning Board of Adjustment sitting for the hearing were the
chairperson, Henry Kidder and board members David Felmet, Joshua Morgan, George
Escaravage and Edward Moore. Ronald E. Sneed attended as counsel for the Board.

Byron Hickox, Land Development Administrator, appeared for the Town staff,

The Zoning Board of Adjustment, having heard and considered the testimony of town
staff, all witnesses for the Applicant and from citizens who chose to speak, and having
considered all the evidence presented by the town staff and the Applicant, and the statements and
arguments of the Applicant, makes the following

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Zoning Board of Adjustment has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Section
14.4.1and Section 15.13 of the Land Development Standards.

2. Proper notice of this meeting and hearing of the Zoning Board of Adjustment was
provided as required by the Town ordinances and the state law.

3. Mountain Credit Union owns that real property located at 1700 Russ Avenue currently
having the PIN number on the Haywood Tax Map of 8616-36-7164.

4. The Applicant proposes to construct on the property a two story building to house the
offices of Mountain Credit Union.

20



5. The property is located in the Dellwood Medium Density Mixed-Use Overlay District.
6. The proposed use of the property is allowed in that overly district.

7. Section 5.10.3( C)2 of the Land Development Standards requires that “At least fifty
(50) percent of the length of building along the side street building facade” must be comprised of
transparent glazing.

8. The building proposed by the Applicant is a standalone “monument” building and not
one of several commercial buildings fronting a street with significant foot traffic.

9. The proposed building will set back from the street and will have landscaping features
which will conceal part of the front of the building.

10. The business of the applicant Mountain Credit Union is banking, which requires
privacy for its customers for many of their transactions and precludes the use of exterior
windows for many of the business’s office.

11. There are internal features which are not normally exposed to view from outside the
building, such as stairs and mechanical areas.

12. Unnecessary hardship will result from a strict application of the ordinance by
exposing transactions that are required to be private to the public and by presenting views of
portions of the interior of the building that will detract from the overall attractiveness of the
building.

13. The hardships result from conditions that are peculiar to the property, as the property
is a standalone project and not part of downtown street development with multiple store fronts
for different businesses abutting the sidewalk.

14. The hardship is not the result of the actions taken by the Applicant, as the banking
business requires privacy for many of its customers transactions, and not just this one institution.

15 Installation of the mandated amount of windows on its first floor will give it an
awkward and incongruous appearance, while forcing the Applicant to design the interior of the
building in an unorthodox fashion to protect the privacy of its customers and to relocate stairs
and mechanical areas.

16. The requested variance with only 35% of the ground level frontage being transparent
glazing will allow fewer windows at the ground level and create a more balanced look to the
front of the building, allowing it to fit in better with the nearby residential structures, maintaining
the residential character of the district.

2l



BASED UPON THE FOREGOING FINDINGS OF FACT, THIS BOARD by a vote of 5
to 0 concludes that;:

1. Unnecessary hardship will result from the strict application of the ordinance as such
strict application will prevent the protection of privacy of the customers of the Applicant and
expose to view interior portions of the building which will detract from its appearance.

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, as it is not one
of several adjoining structures immediately adjacent to the sidewalk in a part of town where foot
traffic is common.

3. The hardship is not the result of actions taken by the property owner as it is in the
business of banking and must meet privacy requirements.

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the
ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved, as the resulting
building with fewer than the required number of windows on the ground floor will provide the
privacy required by the business and by allowing the building to look more residential in
appeararnce.

IT IS NOW, THEREFORE, ORDERED, that the Applicant is granted a variance of
Section 5.10.3( C)2 of the Land Development Standards, and is required to have only 35% of its
ground floor frontage as transparent glazing.

This the day of , 2018.

HENRY KIDDER, Chairperson

If you are dissatisfied with the decision of this Board, an appeal may be taken to the
Superior Court of Haywood County within 30 days after the date this order is served on
you. See Section 15.13.4 of the Land Development Standards.

e



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BEFORE THE WAYNESVILLE
COUNTY OF HAYWOOD ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

In the Matter of the Application of
Jackie Rich for a Variance for
Property at 62 Overbrook Drive
ORDER GRANTING VARIANCE

THIS CAUSE, coming on before the Zoning Board of Adjustment for the Town of
Waynesville on December 4, 2018, upon the application of Jackie Rich for a variance to allow a
reduction of the required transparent glazing for the street side ground floor of a proposed new
structure.

Jackie Rich appeared pro se.

The members of the Zoning Board of Adjustment sitting for the hearing were the
chairperson, Henry Kidder and board members David Felmet, Joshua Morgan, George
Escaravage and Edward Moore. Ronald E. Sneed attended as counsel for the Board.

Byron Hickox, Land Development Administrator, appeared for the Town staff.

The Zoning Board of Adjustment, having heard and considered the testimony of town
staff, all witnesses for the Applicant and from citizens who chose to speak, and having
considered all the evidence presented by the town staff and the Applicant, and the statements and
arguments of the Applicant, makes the following

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Zoning Board of Adjustment has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Section
14.4.1and Section 15.13 of the Land Development Standards.

2. Proper notice of this meeting and hearing of the Zoning Board of Adjustment was
provided as required by the Town ordinances and the state law.

3. Jackie Rich owns that real property located at 62 Overbrook Drive currently having
the PIN number on the Haywood Tax Map of 8615-79-2340.

4. The Applicant has partially completed a single story 6,960 square foot structure on the
property, which has been designed to house three businesses.

5. The property is located in the North Main Neighborhood District.

6. The proposed use of the property is allowed in that overly district.

3



24

7. Section 5.10.3( C)2 of the Land Development Standards requires that “At least fifty
(50) percent of the length of building along the side street building facade must be comprised of
transparent glazing.

8. The building proposed by the Applicant is designed to front on an area facing away
from Broadview Road onto an area the has access to Overbrook Drive by way of an existing
driveway entrance.

9. The “back” of the proposed structure is the long side of the building that runs parallel
to Broadview, while the building is approximately perpendicular to Overbrook Drive.

10. The property owner has asked that the required transparent glazing on the side of the
building facing Broadview Road be reduced to 22.5%, which is a reduction of 27.5%.

11. By orienting the building so that its “front” is on the side which does not face a street
allows parking to be constructed in front of the doorways of the three business spaces, taking
traffic off Broadview and allowing access to all three businesses by way of a single driveway
onto Overbrook Drive.

12. The proposed building will set back from the street and will have landscaping features
which will soften the look of the back of the building which will be adjacent to the sidewalk and
Broadview Road.

13. The “back” of the building will house areas requiring privacy, mechanical areas, and
kitchen space for the proposed businesses to be in the building, presenting a view that will not be
attractive or provide privacy from Broadview Road if 50% of that side of the building is
transparent glazing.

14. The properties across Broadview from the building are primarily residential.

15. The “back” of the building, as designed with some windows and with landscaping,
will be more residential in character than a storefront with 50% or more of its front being glass,
so that the proposed plan is more in character with the neighborhood than a storefront facing
Broadview would be.

16. Unnecessary hardship will result from strict application of the ordinance, as it will
either require that windows be installed providing a view from a public street into areas intended
to be private or into kitchen and mechanical areas, or it will require that the interior floor plan be
reversed to put the “front” of the building on the opposite side of the building from the parking
area.

17. The hardship is the result of conditions peculiar to the property as the parking area
and the entrance onto Overbrook Drive is already in existence.

18. The hardship is not the result of actions taken by the property owner as the parcel of
land, with its logical area for parking and its access to Overbrook, was in existence before the
property owner acquired the property.



29

19. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the
ordinance, such that public safety is secured and substantial justice is achieved, as the existing
property can be used in the manner it was designed and the side of the building facing the
residential properties will have less commercial appearance. Safety is enhanced by the single
driveway onto Overbrook Drive serving several businesses.

BASED UPON THE FOREGOING FINDINGS OF FACT, THIS BOARD by a vote of 5
to 0 concludes that:

1. Unnecessary hardship will result from the strict application of the ordinance as such
strict application will prevent the protection of privacy of the customers of the Applicant and
expose to view interior portions of the building which will detract from its appearance.

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, as it already has
a separate entrance onto Overbrook Drive and an area for parking that dictates that the “front” of
the building be facing away from Broadview Road.

3. The hardship is not the result of actions taken by the property owner as the property
was already configured in a way that made it more practical to have the front of the building
facing away from the street.

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the
ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved, as the resulting
building will maximize the use of the existing lot, limit the number of points where traffic will
enter and exit the public street, and reduce the visual impact on the residential properties across
Broadview Road from the building.

IT IS NOW, THEREFORE, ORDERED, that the Applicant is granted a variance of
Section 5.10.3( C)2 of the Land Development Standards, and is required to have only 22.5% of
its ground floor frontage on Broadview Road as transparent glazing.

This the day of , 2018.

HENRY KIDDER, Chairperson

If you are dissatisfied with the decision of this Board, an appeal may be taken to the
Superior Court of Haywood County within 30 days after the date this order is served on
you. See Section 15.13.4 of the Land Development Standards.



The Town of Waynesville’s
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update
Report to the Zoning Board of Adjustment
April 2, 2019

WAYNESVILLE

.+ North Carolina k

Progress with Vision

Existing Plan

“Waynesville: Our Heritage Our
Future,” 2020 Development Plan
Started in 1999. Adopted in 2002.

Involved Planning Board, Aldermen, a Land
Development Plan Steering Committee, and
Benchmark Consulting.

Basis for April, 2003 Land Development
Standards, multiple amendments from 2004-
2010, comprehensive update of April 12,
2011, and all amendments since.

Need to update in order to:
— Adjust the “planning horizon” to 2035.
— Reflect changing needs and growth patterns.
— Comply with NC General Statutes.

He

3/25/2019



NC General Statutes Authority

NCGS § 160A-381. Grant of power.

"For the purpase of promoting health, safety, morals, or the general welfare of the
community, any city may adopt zoning and development regulation ordinances. These
ordinances may be adopted as part of a unified development ordinance or as a
separate ordinance. A zoning ordinance may regulate and restrict the height, number
of stories and size of buildings and other structures, the percentage of lots that may
be occupied, the size of yards, courts and other open spaces, the density of
population, the location and use of buildings, structures and land.

NCGS § 160A-383 Purposes in View (revised 2017):

“Zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with a comprehensive plan...

“Prior to adopting or rejecting any zoning amendment, the governing board shall
adopt a statement approving the zoning amendment and describing it consistency
with an adopted comprehensive plan and explaining why the action it reasonable and
in the public interest.”

Smart Growth Framework

The 10 principles below are the foundation of a smart growth approach used in the 2020
Plan. (SmartGrowthAmerica.org; and USEPA.gov/smartgrowth)

1. Mix land uses
2. Take advantage of compact design
3. Create a range of housing opportunities and choices

4. Create walkable neighborhoods

5. Foster distinctive, attractive communities with a strong sense of place

6. Preserve open space, farmland, natural beauty, and critical
environmental areas

7. Direct development towards existing communities
8. Provide a variety of transportation choices
9. Make development decisions predictable, fair, and cost effective

10. Encourage community and stakeholder collaboration in development
decisions

.y g

3/25/2019



Plan Update

Contracted with Stewart Engineering

Started process May, 2018; Keeping Smart Growth
Framework

368 responses to a survey, analysis by WCU.
Held a Community Visioning Workshop, June 21, 2018.
Community Meeting at Pigeon Center, August 16, 2018

Worked with Public Works staff to redraw the Urban
Services Boundary.

Entering phase 2 (drafting of vision, goals, plan)

Comprehensive Plan website:

http://www.waynesvillenc.gov/comprehensive-plan-
update

Emerging Themes

— Greenways, Green Infrastructure
— Historic Preservation
— Increasing density in some areas, reducing it in others.

— Multi-faceted economy (Hospitality and Tourism,
Manufacturing and Industry, Small businesses,
Internet/broad-band based, Education, Healthcare)

— Housing Variety (ages, incomes, styles, rental, ownership,
mixed-use)

— Redevelopment Opportunities, Encouraging Infill, Density

— Public Health (opioid epidemic, aging in place, parks and
recreation)

— Workforce preparedness and education

2%

3/25/2019



Vision Statement
Existing(2002) :

“Waynesville's Vision is preserving its heritage and inviting the future through
quality planning for living today and tomorrow.

Our mission is to preserve and promote our neighborhoods, open spaces, vistas,
natural and cultural resources and historic places. We will achieve this through
planning mixed-use developments, aesthetic infrastructure design for economic
prosperity, healthy community and family life, education, and the arts for public
enjoymc—:.;nt. Waynesville will be regarded as the model town for the twenty-first
century.

Proposed working draft for update (2018):

“Waynesville will enable the growth of a vibrant, healthy, and successful
community — TRUE to our history, small-town culture and heritage; RESPONSIVE
to the changing aspirations and needs of all our citizens; PURPOSEFULLY BUILT on
the principles of smart growth; MINDFUL of the gift of our rivers and creeks, and
the surrounding farmland and mountain vistas; and ATTENTIVE to the
opportunities presented in regional preservation, arts and education, economic
development, and land use initiatives.”

ZBA feedback

— Thoughts on the Vision Statement?

— Land Use or land development regulation
concerns that should be addressed?

— Other comments and ideas?

Additional Community Meetings will be held:
April 11, at Recreation Center in Rec Park, 5:30 — 6:30 pm
April 16, at Fire Station 1 on North Main, 5:30 - 6:30 pm
April 25, Folkmoot Center, 4:30 - 5:30 pm

Qq

3/25/2019



A\/ISION, GOALS & OBJECTIVES

THE VISION STATEMENT

The 2020 Land Development Plan, its vision statement and its smart growth framework, has
worked well for the Town. Many goals and objectives laid out have been accomplished,

and the Land Use Map and Urban Services Boundary created the basis for effective policies.
The purpose of this Plan is to build on that success and to continue to work towards social,
environmental, and economic benefits as envisioned in 2002 when the original plan and vision
statement (below) were adopted.

Waynesville: Our Heritage, Our Future, 2020 Land Development Plan
-Adopted April 23, 2002

Waynesville's vision is preserving its heritage and inviting the future
through quality planning for living today and tomorrow.
Our mission is to preserve and promote our neighborhoods, open spaces,

vistas, natural and cultural resources, and historic places. We will achieve
this through planning mixed-use developments, aesthetic infrastructure
design for economic prosperity, healthy community and family-life,
education, and the aris for public enjoyment. Waynesville will be regarded
as the model town for the twenty-first century.

However, the Steering Committee and staff felt that while the overall Vision for the community
had not fundamentally changed, the Vision Statement could be improved. There was
consensus that the vision statement for the updated plan should encompass new needs and
concerns looking forward, should be more concise and easier to understand, and should
provide a fresh take on the good intentions of the original. There was also a desire to be “true
to Waynesville" and who we are as a community, by keying on common values and what the
community hopes to encompass through the plan's adoption.

Our Vision For The 2035 Comprehensive Plan

Waynesville will enable the growth of a vibrant, healthy, and successful
community - true to our history, small-town culture and heritage; responsive
to the changing aspirations and needs of all our citizens; purposefully built

on the principles of smart growth; mindful of the gift of our rivers and creeks,

farmland and mountain vistas; and attentive o the opportunities presented

in regional preservation, arts and education, economic development, and
land use initiatives.

62 WAYNESVILLE 2035: PLANNING WITH PURPOSE DRAFT



%l

VISION, GOALS & OBJECTIVES A
GOALS AND POLICIES

Five over-arching goals were developed from the previous plan, community input, and
guidance from the Steering Committee and consultants. Detailed recommendations and
action steps to implement these goals follow in Chapter é.

Goal 1: Continue to promote smart growth principles in land use planning
and zoning.

» Create arange of housing opportunities and choices.

» Create walkable and attractive neighborhoods and commercial centers.

» Limit Town water and sewer services to within the urban services boundary

» Restrict development intensity in rural areas and areas with important natural resources

» Direct medium to high density and mixed-use development to within the revised urban
service boundary.

» Limit Town water and sewer services to within the urban services boundary

» Encourage infill and context-sensitive development

» Create arange of housing opportunities and choices.

» Promote conservation design in new residential developments

» Reinforce the unique character of downtown Waynesville, Frog Level and Hazelwood
» Encourage community and stakeholder collaboration in design and zoning decisions.

JANUARY 2019 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 63



%

AVISION, GOALS & OBJECTIVES

Goal 2: Protect Waynesville's natural resources.

» Protect the Richland Creek Watershed through park and greenway development, the
enforcement of buffers, stormwater and land disturbance regulations.

» Continue to partner with Haywood Waterways Association and other entities to monitor
and improve water quality

» Limit disturbance and protect ridgelines, and slope areas over 2,900 feet in elevation with
continued enforcement of hillside development and steep slope standards.

» Protect rural lands, iconic views and mountain vistas

» Conserve open space and farmland by promoting infill and encouraging development
in the urbanized areas of town

» Protect and enhance the Town's forests

» Continue to engage in and promote best management practices related to energy use,
efficiency and waste management.

Goal 3: Protect Waynesville's cultural resources.

» Continue to invest in Historic Preservation through an active Historic Preservation
Commission, applications to the National Register of eligible town-owned properties,
restoration of town-owned sites, and educational events that promote Waynesville's
history and encourage private property owner participation in historic preservation.

» Update the Towns historic property study list.

» Promote applications by private landowners for Local Landmark designations and
National Register consideration.

» Continue to identify and pursue additional National Register District designations in
addition to the Main Street, Frog Level and Spreadout Districts, including the Love Lane
neighborhood and Dix Hill Cemetery.

Greenhill Cemetery

64 WAYNESVILLE 2035: PLANNING WITH PURPOSE DRAFT



VISION, GOALS & OBJECTI\/ESA

Hiric he[on Hus‘e S i . ) )
» Protect designated historic districts with fair and rigorous review of certificates of
appropriateness.
» Continue to invest in and install art pieces within the Town's public realm through an
active and engaged Public Arts Commission.

» Support efforts of Folkmoot, the Haywood County Arts Commission, the Downtown
Waynesville Association and others to enrich our community with events and education.

Goal 4: Create opportunities for a sustainable economy.

» Strengthen Waynesville's existing and future workforce through education, partnerships
with the Haywood County Board of Education, Haywood Community College, and
Western Carolina University.

» Support the growth of existing local businesses.

» Recruit and retain businesses that provide local employment and fill gaps in consumer
demand.

» Support Waynesville's "maker economy” of craft, art, brewing, fumiture making, and
other smaill, local manufacturing.

» Promote Waynesville's downtown districts, historic bed and breakfasts inns, restaurants,

and our local reputation for hospitality as the “gateway to the Great Smoky Mountain
Park™ in support of our growing tourism industry.

» Encourage creatfively designed, mixed-use, walkable centers. Design for walkable
commercial districts and greenway infrastructure that appeals to visitors and residents.

» Support the Town's Parks and Recreation Master Plan and develop recreational facilities
that appeal to regional and neighborhood users.

» Work in partnership with local agencies to increase housing, promote a “living
wage," and increase substance abuse and mental health tfreatment and counseling
opportunities.

JANUARY 2019 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 65



AVISION, GOALS & OBJECTIVES

» Promote and increase Waynesville's medical, health and wellness resources that serve all
ages.

» Broaden the availability of high speed internet and madernize wireless communication
facilifies.

» Promote green building and the use of solar and wind technologies.

Goal 5: Create an aftractive, safe and multi-modal transportation system.

» Provide an interconnected fransportation network of roadways, greenways, freight
mobility, bicycle routes, and sidewalks that improves safety and strategic access for all
users.

» Coordinate with the North Carolina Department of Transportation on roadway
improvement projects, particularly those along South Main, North Main, Russ Avenue,
Pigeon Road and Dellwood Road.

» Work with regional and local businesses and planning agencies to develop public transit
opportunities that connect users to local destinations, educational centers, and jobs.

» Support development of an inter-city fransit and greenway route between Waynesville
and Asheville and other Haywood County and Western Carolina destinations.

» Ensure citizenry has access to recreational, health and wellness, and medical services.

INSERT PIC OF GREENWAY OR SIDEWALK

66 WAYNESVILLE 2035: PLANNING WITH PURPOSE DRAFT



